850 Purchase Order

X12/V4010/850: 850 Purchase Order

Version: 2.0 Final

Author: D&H Distributors
Company: D&H Distributors

Publication: 8/15/2016

Trading Partner:

Modified: 8/12/2016

Notes

EDI notes

The EDI messages use UTF8/Unicode characters and the field data is limited to the following characters: A through Z (upper or lowercase) (non-English characters are not permitted)

0 through 9

! " & '() / + , - . : ; = (space) % @ []_{} #\$

All messages between trading partners need to meet EDI validation.

Upon sending an EDI message D&H will expect a return 997 Functional Acknowledgment.

The sample segments and messages included in this guide use the asterisk as the data element separator. The separators used for actual EDI transmissions will be agreed upon with each trading partner.

Note- D&H requires any segment reflected in this guide as 'mandatory' (note under the usage section) to be transmitted in your documents. We will accept all valid X12 segments (By ANSI standards) but will only process those required for our business unless otherwise negotiated during your implementation EDI Contacts

General EDI Email: edi@dandh.com

D&H Distributors

Table of Contents

| 850 | Pu | rcnase Order | 1 |
|-----|-----|---|----|
| | ISA | Interchange Control Header | 3 |
| | GS | Functional Group Header | 5 |
| | ST | Transaction Set Header | 7 |
| | BEG | Beginning Segment for Purchase Order | 8 |
| | REF | Reference Identification | Ş |
| | ITD | Terms of Sale/Deferred Terms of Sale | 10 |
| | DTM | Date/Time Reference | 11 |
| | TD5 | Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time) | 12 |
| | N9 | Reference Identification | 13 |
| | MSG | Message Text | 14 |
| | N1 | Name | 15 |
| | N2 | Additional Name Information | 16 |
| | N3 | Address Information | 17 |
| | N4 | Geographic Location | 18 |
| | PER | Administrative Communications Contact | 19 |
| | PO1 | Baseline Item Data | 20 |
| | CTT | Transaction Totals | 22 |
| | SE | Transaction Set Trailer | 23 |
| | GE | Functional Group Trailer | 24 |
| | IEA | Interchange Control Trailer | 25 |

850

Purchase Order

Functional Group=PO

Purpose: This Draft Standard for Trial Use contains the format and establishes the data contents of the Purchase Order Transaction Set (850) for use within the context of an Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) environment. The transaction set can be used to provide for customary and established business and industry practice relative to the placement of purchase orders for goods and services. This transaction set should not be used to convey purchase order changes or purchase order acknowledgment information.

Not Defined:

| <u>Pos</u> | <u>ld</u> | Segment Name | <u>Req</u> | Max Use | <u>Repeat</u> | <u>Notes</u> | <u>Usage</u> |
|------------|-----------|----------------------------|------------|---------|---------------|--------------|--------------|
| | ISA | Interchange Control Header | M | 1 | | | Must use |
| | GS | Functional Group Header | М | 1 | | | Must use |
| Heading | j: | | | | | | |

| <u>Pos</u> | <u>ld</u> | Segment Name | Req | Max Use | <u>Repeat</u> | <u>Notes</u> | <u>Usage</u> |
|------------|-----------|---|-----|---------|---------------|--------------|--------------|
| 010 | ST | Transaction Set Header | M | 1 | | | Must use |
| 020 | BEG | Beginning Segment for Purchase Order | М | 1 | | | Must use |
| 050 | REF | Reference Identification | 0 | >1 | | | Must use |
| 130 | ITD | Terms of Sale/Deferred Terms of Sale | 0 | >1 | | | Used |
| 150 | DTM | Date/Time Reference | 0 | 10 | | | Used |
| 240 | TD5 | Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time) | 0 | 12 | | | Must use |

| LOOP I | D - N9 | | | <u>1000</u> | | |
|--------|--------|--------------------------|---|-------------|--|----------|
| 295 | N9 | Reference Identification | 0 | 1 | | Must use |
| 300 | MSG | Message Text | 0 | 1000 | | Used |

| LOOP | <u>ID - N1</u> | | | | <u>200</u> | |
|------|----------------|---------------------------------------|---|----|------------|----------|
| 310 | N1 | Name | 0 | 1 | | Must use |
| 320 | N2 | Additional Name Information | 0 | 2 | | Used |
| 330 | N3 | Address Information | 0 | 2 | | Used |
| 340 | N4 | Geographic Location | 0 | >1 | | Used |
| 360 | PER | Administrative Communications Contact | 0 | >1 | | Used |

Detail:

| Pos | <u>ld</u> | Segment Name | <u>Req</u> | Max Use | Repeat | <u>Notes</u> | <u>Usage</u> |
|---------------|-----------|--------------------|------------|---------|---------------|--------------|--------------|
| LOOP ID - PO1 | | | | | <u>100000</u> | N2/010L | |
| 010 | PO1 | Baseline Item Data | М | 1 | | N2/010 | Must use |

Summary:

| <u>Pos</u> | <u>ld</u> | Segment Name | Req | Max Use | <u>Repeat</u> | <u>Notes</u> | <u>Usage</u> |
|------------|-----------|-------------------------|-----|---------|---------------|--------------|--------------|
| LOOP | ID - CTT | | | | <u>1</u> | N3/010L | |
| 010 | CTT | Transaction Totals | 0 | 1 | | N3/010 | Must use |
| 030 | SE | Transaction Set Trailer | М | 1 | | | Must use |

Not Defined:

| <u>Pos</u> | <u>ld</u> | Segment Name | <u>Req</u> | Max Use | <u>Repeat</u> | <u>Notes</u> | <u>Usage</u> |
|------------|-----------|-----------------------------|------------|---------|---------------|--------------|--------------|
| | GE | Functional Group Trailer | М | 1 | | | Must use |
| | IEA | Interchange Control Trailer | М | 1 | | | Must use |

Notes:

| PO102 is required. |
|---|
| PO102 is required. |
| The number of line items (CTT01) is the accumulation of the number of PO1 segments. If used, hash total (CTT02) is the sum of the value of quantities ordered (PO102) for each PO1 segment. |
| The number of line items (CTT01) is the accumulation of the number of PO1 segments. If used, hash total (CTT02) is the sum of the value of quantities ordered (PO102) for each PO1 segment. |
| |

ISA Interchange Control Header

Pos: Max: 1
Not Defined - Mandatory
Loop: N/A Elements: 16

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To start and identify an interchange of zero or more functional groups and interchange-related control segments

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> ISA01 | <u>ld</u> 101 | Element Name Authorization Information Qualifier | Req M | Type ID | <u>Min/Max</u> 2/2 | <u>Usage</u> Must use |
|---------------------|------------------|--|-----------|------------|-----------------------|--------------------------|
| | | Description: Code to identify the type of in | nformatio | on in the | Authorization I | Information |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 7, Included Code Name No Authorization Information Preservation | · | leaningfu | l Information ir | n 102) |
| ISA02 | 102 | Authorization Information | М | AN | 10/10 | Must use |
| | | Description: Information used for additional interchange sender or the data in the interchauthorization Information Qualifier (I01) | | | | |
| ISA03 | 103 | Security Information Qualifier | М | ID | 2/2 | Must use |
| | | Description: Code to identify the type of in | formation | on in the | Security Inforn | nation |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 2, Included Code Name No Security Information Present (No. | | ngful Info | rmation in 104) | |
| ISA04 | 104 | Security Information | М | AN | 10/10 | Must use |
| | | Description: This is used for identifying the sender or the data in the interchange; the tylinformation Qualifier (I03) | | - | | _ |
| ISA05 | 105 | Interchange ID Qualifier | М | ID | 2/2 | Must use |
| | | Description: Qualifier to designate the systhe sender or receiver ID element being qu | | thod of c | ode structure ι | used to designate |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 38, Included Code Name Phone (Telephone Companies) | uded: 1) |) | | |
| ISA06 | 106 | Interchange Sender ID | М | AN | 15/15 | Must use |
| | | Description: Identification code published receiver ID to route data to them; the sende element | | | | |
| ISA07 | 105 | Interchange ID Qualifier | М | ID | 2/2 | Must use |
| | | Description: Qualifier to designate the systhe sender or receiver ID element being qu | | thod of c | ode structure (| used to designate |
| ISA08 | 107 | Interchange Receiver ID | М | AN | 15/15 | Must use |

| Ref | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | Req | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> |
|----------|-----------|---|-----------------------|-------------|---------------|-------------------|
| | | Description: Identification code published used by the sender as their sending ID, thu receiving ID to route data to them | • | | • | • |
| ISA09 | 108 | Interchange Date | М | DT | 6/6 | Must use |
| | | Description: Date of the interchange | | | | |
| ISA10 | 109 | Interchange Time | М | TM | 4/4 | Must use |
| | | Description: Time of the interchange | | | | |
| ISA11 | I10 | Interchange Control Standards Identifier | М | ID | 1/1 | Must use |
| | | Description: Code to identify the agency remessage that is enclosed by the interchang All valid standard codes are used. (Total | ge head | er and tra | | dard used by the |
| ISA12 | l11 | Interchange Control Version Number | М | ID | 5/5 | Must use |
| | | Description: Code specifying the version r | number | of the int | erchange cont | rol segments |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 14, Included Code Name Output Draft Standards for Trial Use Approach Review Board through October 199 | ved for | | on by ASC X1. | 2 Procedures |
| ISA13 | l12 | Interchange Control Number | М | N0 | 9/9 | Must use |
| | | Description: A control number assigned by | y the int | erchange | e sender | |
| ISA14 | I13 | Acknowledgment Requested | М | ID | 1/1 | Must use |
| | | Description: Code sent by the sender to re | equest a | an interch | ange acknowl | edgment (TA1) |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 2, Included Code Name No Acknowledgment Requested | ded: 1) | | | |
| ISA15 | l14 | Usage Indicator | М | ID | 1/1 | Must use |
| | | Description: Code to indicate whether data production or information | a enclos | sed by thi | s interchange | envelope is test, |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 3, Included Code Name Production Data T Test Data | ded: 2) | | | |
| ISA16 | l15 | Component Element Separator | М | | 1/1 | Must use |
| | | Description: Type is not applicable; the conot a data element; this field provides the elements within a composite data structure element separator and the segment terminal | elimiter ; this va | used to | separate comp | oonent data |
| D & H No | otes: | | | | | |

00

Sample : ISA*00*

*01*XXXXXXXXX *12*7172557825 *160715*1418*U*00401*000089783*0*P*>~

GS Functional Group Header

Pos: Max: 1
Not Defined - Mandatory
Loop: N/A Elements: 8

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the beginning of a functional group and to provide control information

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> GS01 | <u>ld</u> 479 | Element Name Functional Identifier Code | Req M | Type ID | Min/Max 2/2 | <u>Usage</u> Must use |
|--------------------|------------------|---|----------|------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------------|
| | | Description: Code identifying a group of ap | plicatio | n related | I transaction se | ets |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 240, Incl Code Name PO Purchase Order (850) | uded: 1 |) | | |
| GS02 | 142 | Application Sender's Code | М | AN | 2/15 | Must use |
| | | Description: Code identifying party sending partners | transm | nission; c | codes agreed to | o by trading |
| GS03 | 124 | Application Receiver's Code | М | AN | 2/15 | Must use |
| | | Description: Code identifying party receiving partners | ig trans | mission; | codes agreed | to by trading |
| GS04 | 373 | Date | М | DT | 8/8 | Must use |
| | | Description: Date expressed as CCYYMME | DD | | | |
| GS05 | 337 | Time | М | TM | 4/8 | Must use |
| | | Description: Time expressed in 24-hour clo HHMMSSD, or HHMMSSDD, where H = hou seconds (00-59) and DD = decimal seconds = tenths (0-9) and DD = hundredths (00-99) | urs (00- | 23), M = | minutes (00-59 | 9), S = integer |
| GS06 | 28 | Group Control Number | М | N0 | 1/9 | Must use |
| | | Description: Assigned number originated a | nd mair | ntained b | y the sender | |
| GS07 | 455 | Responsible Agency Code | М | ID | 1/2 | Must use |
| | | Description: Code identifying the issuer of with Data Element 480 | the star | ndard; thi | is code is used | I in conjunction |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 2, Included Code Name X Accredited Standards Committee X12 | ŕ | | | |
| GS08 | 480 | Version / Release / Industry Identifier Code | M | AN | 1/12 | Must use |
| | | Descriptions Order in discription the committee of | | | and the second first all the second | !! |

Description: Code indicating the version, release, subrelease, and industry identifier of the EDI standard being used, including the GS and GE segments; if code in DE455 in GS segment is X, then in DE 480 positions 1-3 are the version number; positions 4-6 are the release and subrelease, level of the version; and positions 7-12 are the industry or trade association identifiers (optionally assigned by user); if code in DE455 in GS segment is T, then other formats are allowed

Ref Id Element Name Req Type Min/Max Usage

CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 39, Included: 1)

Code Name

004010 Draft Standards Approved for Publication by ASC X12 Procedures Review Board through October 1997

Comments:

1. A functional group of related transaction sets, within the scope of X12 standards, consists of a collection of similar transaction sets enclosed by a functional group header and a functional group trailer.

D & H Notes:

Sample:

GS*PO*XXXXXXXXXX*7172557825*20160715*1418*850035393*X*004010~

ST Transaction Set Header

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the start of a transaction set and to assign a control number

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | Req | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> |
|--|-----------|--|----------|-------------|---------|--------------|
| ST01 | 143 | Transaction Set Identifier Code | M | ID | 3/3 | Must use |
| | | Description: Code uniquely identifying a T | ransacti | on Set | | |
| CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 298, Included: 1) | | | | | | |
| | | Code Name | | | | |
| | | 850 Purchase Order | | | | |
| ST02 | 329 | Transaction Set Control Number | М | AN | 4/9 | Must use |

Description: Identifying control number that must be unique within the transaction set

functional group assigned by the originator for a transaction set

D & H Notes:

Sample:

ST*850*850342138~

BEG Beginning Segment for Purchase Order

Pos: 020 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 5

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the beginning of the Purchase Order Transaction Set and transmit identifying numbers and dates

Element Summary:

| Ref BEG01 | <u>ld</u> 353 | Element Name Transaction Set Purpose Code | <u>Req</u> M | Type ID | Min/Max 2/2 | <u>Usage</u> Must use |
|--------------|------------------|---|-----------------|------------|----------------|--------------------------|
| | | Description: Code identifying purpose of t | ransacti | on set | | |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 65, Included Code Name Original | uded: 1) | | | |
| BEG02 | 92 | Purchase Order Type Code | М | ID | 2/2 | Must use |
| | | Description: Code specifying the type of F | Purchase | Order | | |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 69, Incl | uded: 2) | | | |
| | | CodeNameDSDropshipSAStand-alone Order | | | | |
| BEG03 | 324 | Purchase Order Number | М | AN | 1/22 | Must use |
| | | Description: Identifying number for Purcha | ase Orde | er assign | ed by the orde | rer/purchaser |
| BEG05 | 373 | Date | М | DT | 8/8 | Must use |
| | | Description: Date expressed as CCYYMM | IDD | | | |
| BEG06 | 367 | Contract Number | 0 | AN | 1/30 | Used |
| | | Description: Contract number | | | | |

D & H Notes:

Sample:

BEG*00*SA*PSR8519**20160715~

REF Reference Identification

Pos: 050 Max: >1 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 3

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify identifying information

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | <u>Req</u> | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> | | | |
|---|-----------|---|------------|-------------|---------|--------------|--|--|--|
| REF01 | 128 | Reference Identification Qualifier | M | ID | 2/3 | Must use | | | |
| | | Description: Code qualifying the Reference Identification | | | | | | | |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1503, Included: 1) | | | | | | | |
| | | Code Name | | | | | | | |
| | | CO Customer Order Number | | | | | | | |
| REF02 | 127 | Reference Identification | Χ | AN | 1/30 | Used | | | |
| Description: Reference information as defined for a particular Transaction Set or as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier | | | | | | | | | |
| REF03 | 352 | Description | Χ | AN | 1/80 | Used | | | |

Description: A free-form description to clarify the related data elements and their content

D & H Notes:

Sample:

REF*CO*PSR8519~

9

ITD Terms of Sale/Deferred Terms of Sale

Pos: 130 Max: >1 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 6

User Option (Usage): Used
Purpose: To specify terms of sale

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> ITD01 | <u>ld</u> 336 | Element Name Terms Type Code | <u>Req</u> O | Type ID | Min/Max 2/2 | <u>Usage</u> Used |
|---------------------|------------------|--|-----------------|------------|-----------------|----------------------|
| | | Description: Code identifying type of payn | nent terr | ns | | |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 65, Incl Code Name Previously agreed upon | uded: 1) |) | | |
| ITD02 | 333 | Terms Basis Date Code | 0 | ID | 1/2 | Used |
| | | Description: Code identifying the beginning | g of the | terms pe | eriod | |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 17, Incl Code Name ZZ Mutually Defined | uded: 1) | 1 | | |
| ITD03 | 338 | Terms Discount Percent | 0 | R | 1/6 | Used |
| | | Description: Terms discount percentage, of purchaser if an invoice is paid on or before | • | • | | e to the |
| ITD05 | 351 | Terms Discount Days Due | Χ | N0 | 1/3 | Used |
| | | Description: Number of days in the terms terms discount is earned | discoun | t period t | oy which payme | nt is due if |
| ITD07 | 386 | Terms Net Days | 0 | N0 | 1/3 | Used |
| | | Description: Number of days until total inv | oice am | ount is d | ue (discount no | t applicable) |
| ITD08 | 362 | Terms Discount Amount | 0 | N2 | 1/10 | Used |
| | | Description: Total amount of terms discou | ınt | | | |

Comments:

D & H Notes:

Sample:

ITD*14*3*2**45***46~

^{1.} If the code in ITD01 is "04", then ITD07 or ITD09 is required and either ITD10 or ITD11 is required; if the code in ITD01 is "05", then ITD06 or ITD07 is required.

DTM Date/Time Reference

Pos: 150 Max: 10 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify pertinent dates and times

Element Summary:

RefIdElement NameReqTypeMin/MaxUsageDTM01374Date/Time QualifierMID3/3Must use

Description: Code specifying type of date or time, or both date and time

CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1112, Included: 2)

Code Name

063 Do Not Deliver After064 Do Not Deliver Before

DTM02 373 **Date** X DT 8/8 Must use

Description: Date expressed as CCYYMMDD

D & H Notes:

Sample:

DTM*063*20160720~

TD5 Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time)

Pos: 240 Max: 12 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 5

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify the carrier and sequence of routing and provide transit time information

Element Summary:

| Ref | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | Req | Type | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> | | | |
|-------|-----------|---|-----------|-------------|---------------------|--------------|--|--|--|
| TD502 | 66 | Identification Code Qualifier | Χ | ID | 1/2 | Used | | | |
| | | Description: Code designating the system/method of code structure used for Identification Code (67) | | | | | | | |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 215, Inc | cluded: 1 | 1) | | | | | |
| | | Code Name | | | | | | | |
| | | 2 Standard Carrier Alpha Code (SCAC) | | | | | | | |
| TD503 | 67 | Identification Code | Х | AN | 2/80 | Used | | | |
| | | Description: Code identifying a party or other code | | | | | | | |
| | | User Note 1: | | | | | | | |
| | | SCAC code | | | | | | | |
| TD504 | 91 | Transportation Method/Type Code | Χ | ID | 1/2 | Used | | | |
| | | Description: Code specifying the method | or type o | of transpo | ortation for the | shipment | | | |
| TD505 | 387 | Routing | Χ | AN | 1/35 | Must use | | | |
| | | Description: Free-form description of the routing or requested routing for shipment, or the originating carrier's identity | | | | | | | |
| TD512 | 284 | Service Level Code | Χ | ID | 2/2 | Used | | | |
| | | Description: Code indicating the level of troffered by the transportation carrier | ansport | ation serv | vice or the billing | ng service | | | |

Comments:

1. When specifying a routing sequence to be used for the shipment movement in lieu of specifying each carrier within the movement, use TD502 to identify the party responsible for defining the routing sequence, and use TD503 to identify the actual routing sequence, specified by the party identified in TD502.

D & H Notes:

Sample:

TD5**2*SK9J0NN******ZZ~

N9 Reference Identification

Pos: 295 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N9 Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To transmit identifying information as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | <u>Req</u> | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> |
|------------|-----------|------------------------------------|------------|-------------|---------|--------------|
| N901 | 128 | Reference Identification Qualifier | М | ID | 2/3 | Must use |

Description: Code qualifying the Reference Identification

CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1503, Included: 1)

Code Name

ZZ Mutually Defined

D & H Notes:

Sample:

N9*ZZ******~

MSG Message Text

Pos: 300 Max: 1000 Heading - Optional Loop: N9 Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To provide a free-form format that allows the transmission of text information

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | <u>Req</u> | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> |
|------------|-----------|------------------------|------------|-------------|---------|--------------|
| MSG01 | 933 | Free-Form Message Text | М | AN | 1/264 | Must use |

Description: Free-form message text

Comments:

1. MSG02 is not related to the specific characteristics of a printer, but identifies top of page, advance a line, etc.

2. If MSG02 is "AA - Advance the specified number of lines before print" then MSG03 is required.

D & H Notes:

Sample:

MSG*Notes About the Order up to 264 characters***~

N1 Name

Pos: 310 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To identify a party by type of organization, name, and code

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | Req | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> | | | |
|------------|-----------|---|-----------|-------------|----------------|--------------------|--|--|--|
| N101 | 98 | Entity Identifier Code | М | ID | 2/3 | Must use | | | |
| | | Description: Code identifying an organizational entity, a physical location, property or an individual | | | | | | | |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1312, Included: 4) | | | | | | | |
| | | CodeNameBTBill-to-PartyENEnd UserSFShip FromSTShip To | | | | | | | |
| N102 | 93 | Name | X | AN | 1/60 | Used | | | |
| | | Description: Free-form name | | | | | | | |
| N103 | 66 | Identification Code Qualifier | Χ | ID | 1/2 | Used | | | |
| | | Description: Code designating the system Code (67) | n/method | d of code | structure used | for Identification | | | |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 215, Inc | cluded: | 1) | | | | | |
| | | Code Name93 Code assigned by the organization | originati | ng the tra | ansaction set | | | | |
| N104 | 67 | Identification Code | Х | AN | 2/80 | Used | | | |
| | | Description: Code identifying a party or of | her code | е | | | | | |

Comments:

- This segment, used alone, provides the most efficient method of providing organizational identification. To obtain this efficiency the "ID Code" (N104) must provide a key to the table maintained by the transaction processing party.
- 2. N105 and N106 further define the type of entity in N101.

D & H Notes:

Sample:

N1*BT*XYZ Logistics*1*10762EEFF~

N2 Additional Name Information

Pos: 320 Max: 2 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify additional names or those longer than 35 characters in length

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | <u>Req</u> | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> |
|------------|-----------|-----------------------------|------------|-------------|---------|--------------|
| N201 | 93 | Name | M | AN | 1/60 | Must use |
| | | Description: Free-form name | | | | |
| N202 | 93 | Name | 0 | AN | 1/60 | Used |
| | | Description: Free-form name | | | | |

D & H Notes:

Sample:

N2*XYZ CO In*XYZ CO IN~

N3 Address Information

Pos: 330 Max: 2 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the location of the named party

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | Req | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> |
|------------|-----------|---|-----|-------------|---------|--------------|
| N301 | 166 | Address Information | М | AN | 1/55 | Must use |
| | | Description: Address information | | | | |
| N302 | 166 | Address Information | 0 | AN | 1/55 | Used |
| | | Description: Address information | | | | |

D & H Notes:

Sample:

N3*100 South Milwaukee Ave.~

N4 Geographic Location

Pos: 340 Max: >1 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the geographic place of the named party

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | Req | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> |
|------------|-----------|---|-----------|-------------|-----------------|--------------|
| N401 | 19 | City Name | 0 | AN | 2/30 | Must use |
| | | Description: Free-form text for city name | | | | |
| N402 | 156 | State or Province Code | 0 | ID | 2/2 | Must use |
| | | Description: Code (Standard State/Province agency | ce) as d | efined by | / appropriate g | overnment |
| N403 | 116 | Postal Code | 0 | ID | 3/15 | Must use |
| | | Description: Code defining international poblanks (zip code for United States) | ostal zoı | ne code | excluding punc | tuation and |
| N404 | 26 | Country Code | 0 | ID | 2/3 | Used |
| | | Description: Code identifying the country | | | | |

Comments:

- 1. A combination of either N401 through N404, or N405 and N406 may be adequate to specify a location.
- 2. N402 is required only if city name (N401) is in the U.S. or Canada.

D & H Notes:

Sample:

N4*XYZ Hills*NY*10061*US~

PER Administrative Communications Contact

Pos: 360 Max: >1 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 6

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To identify a person or office to whom administrative communications should be directed

Element Summary:

| Ref | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | Req | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> | | |
|-------|-----------|--|------------|-------------|-----------------|--------------|--|--|
| PER01 | 366 | Contact Function Code | М | ID | 2/2 | Must use | | |
| | | Description: Code identifying the major dunamed | uty or res | sponsibili | ty of the perso | on or group | | |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 230, Inc. Code Name BD Buyer Name or Department IC Information Contact | cluded: 2 | 2) | | | | |
| PER02 | 93 | Name | 0 | AN | 1/60 | Used | | |
| | | Description: Free-form name | | | | | | |
| PER03 | 365 | Communication Number Qualifier | Х | ID | 2/2 | Used | | |
| | | Description: Code identifying the type of communication number | | | | | | |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 40, Incl Code Name TE Telephone | uded: 1) | | | | | |
| PER04 | 364 | Communication Number | Х | AN | 1/80 | Used | | |
| | | Description: Complete communications no applicable | umber in | cluding o | country or area | a code when | | |
| PER07 | 365 | Communication Number Qualifier | Χ | ID | 2/2 | Used | | |
| | | Description: Code identifying the type of communication number | | | | | | |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 40, Incl Code Name EM Electronic Mail | uded: 1) | | | | | |
| PER08 | 364 | Communication Number | Х | AN | 1/80 | Used | | |
| | | Description: Complete communications no applicable | umber in | cluding o | country or area | a code when | | |

D & H Notes:

Sample:

PER*IC*KIMBERLY HOFSTETTER*TE*8474656000*EM*kimbhof@xyz.com~

PO1 Baseline Item Data

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Detail - Mandatory Loop: PO1 Elements: 17

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify basic and most frequently used line item data

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> PO101 | <u>ld</u> 350 | Element Name Assigned Identification | Req O | <u>Type</u> AN | Min/Max 1/20 | <u>Usage</u> Must use |
|---------------------|------------------|---|------------|-------------------|-------------------|--------------------------|
| | | Description: Alphanumeric characters ass | signed fo | or differer | ntiation within a | a transaction set |
| PO102 | 330 | Quantity Ordered | Х | R | 1/15 | Must use |
| | | Description: Quantity ordered | | | | |
| PO103 | 355 | Unit or Basis for Measurement Code | 0 | ID | 2/2 | Used |
| | | Description: Code specifying the units in which a measurement has been taken | which a | value is b | peing expresse | ed, or manner in |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 794, Inc. Code Name EA Each | cluded: ' | 1) | | |
| PO104 | 212 | Unit Price | Х | R | 1/17 | Must use |
| | | Description: Price per unit of product, ser | vice, cor | nmodity, | etc. | |
| PO105 | 639 | Basis of Unit Price Code | 0 | ID | 2/2 | Must use |
| | | Description: Code identifying the type of t | unit price | for an it | em | |
| PO106 | 235 | Product/Service ID Qualifier | Χ | ID | 2/2 | Used |
| | | Description: Code identifying the type/source of the descriptive number used in Product/Service ID (234) | | | | |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 477, Inc. Code Name UP U.P.C. Consumer Package Code (1 | | 1) | | |
| PO107 | 234 | Product/Service ID | Х | AN | 1/48 | Used |
| | | Description: Identifying number for a prod | luct or se | ervice | | |
| PO108 | 235 | Product/Service ID Qualifier | Χ | ID | 2/2 | Used |
| | | Description: Code identifying the type/sou Product/Service ID (234) | urce of th | ne descri | ptive number u | ised in |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 477, Inc. Code Name VP Vendor's (Seller's) Part Number | cluded: ' | 1) | | |
| PO109 | 234 | Product/Service ID | X | AN | 1/48 | Used |
| | | Description: Identifying number for a prod | luct or se | ervice | | |

| <u>Ref</u> PO110 | <u>ld</u> 235 | Element Name Product/Service ID Qualifier | Req X | <u>Type</u> ID | Min/Max 2/2 | <u>Usage</u> Used |
|----------------------------|------------------|---|------------|------------------------|-----------------|----------------------|
| | | Description: Code identifying the type/sou Product/Service ID (234) | ırce of th | ne descri _l | ptive number us | sed in |
| | | CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 477, Inc. Code Name BP Buyer's Part Number | cluded: ' | 1) | | |
| PO111 | 234 | Product/Service ID | Χ | AN | 1/48 | Used |
| | | Description: Identifying number for a prod | luct or se | ervice | | |
| PO112 | 235 | Product/Service ID Qualifier | Χ | ID | 2/2 | Used |
| | | Description: Code identifying the type/sou Product/Service ID (234) | ırce of th | ne descri _l | ptive number us | sed in |
| PO113 | 234 | Product/Service ID | Χ | AN | 1/48 | Used |
| | | Description: Identifying number for a prod | luct or se | ervice | | |
| PO114 | 235 | Product/Service ID Qualifier | Χ | ID | 2/2 | Used |
| | | Description: Code identifying the type/sou Product/Service ID (234) | ırce of th | ne descri _l | ptive number us | sed in |
| PO115 | 234 | Product/Service ID | Χ | AN | 1/48 | Used |
| | | Description: Identifying number for a prod | luct or se | ervice | | |
| PO116 | 235 | Product/Service ID Qualifier | Χ | ID | 2/2 | Used |
| | | Description: Code identifying the type/sou Product/Service ID (234) | ırce of th | ne descri | ptive number us | sed in |
| PO117 | 234 | Product/Service ID | X | AN | 1/48 | Used |
| | | Description: Identifying number for a prod | luct or se | ervice | | |

Comments:

- 1. See the Data Element Dictionary for a complete list of IDs.
- 2. PO101 is the line item identification.
- 3. PO106 through PO125 provide for ten different product/service IDs per each item. For example: Case, Color, Drawing No., U.P.C. No., ISBN No., Model No., or SKU.

D & H Notes:

Sample:

PO1*1*1*EA*6.9**UP*1486426*VP*CBP50*BP*CBP50****~

CTT Transaction Totals

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Summary - Optional Loop: CTT Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To transmit a hash total for a specific element in the transaction set

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | <u>Req</u> | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> |
|------------|-----------|----------------------|------------|-------------|---------|--------------|
| CTT01 | 354 | Number of Line Items | М | N0 | 1/6 | Must use |

Description: Total number of line items in the transaction set

Comments:

1. This segment is intended to provide hash totals to validate transaction completeness and correctness.

| D & H Notes: | | | |
|--------------|--|--|--|
| Sample: | | | |
| CTT*1~ | | | |

SE Transaction Set Trailer

Pos: 030 Max: 1 Summary - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the end of the transaction set and provide the count of the transmitted segments (including the beginning (ST) and ending (SE) segments)

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | <u>Req</u> | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> |
|------------|---|--|------------|-------------|------------------|-----------------|
| SE01 | 96 | Number of Included Segments | M | N0 | 1/10 | Must use |
| | | Description: Total number of segments in segments | ıcluded iı | n a trans | action set inclu | iding ST and SE |
| SE02 | 329 | Transaction Set Control Number | М | AN | 4/9 | Must use |
| | Description: Identifying control number that must be unique within the transaction set | | | | | |

Comments:

1. SE is the last segment of each transaction set.

| D & H Notes: | |
|--------------|--|
| Sample: | |

SE*23*850342138~

GE Functional Group Trailer

Pos: Max: 1
Not Defined - Mandatory
Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the end of a functional group and to provide control information

Element Summary:

| <u>Ref</u> | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | <u>Req</u> | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> | |
|------------|-----------|--|------------|-------------|---------|--------------|--|
| GE01 | 97 | Number of Transaction Sets Included | М | N0 | 1/6 | Must use | |
| | | Description: Total number of transaction s interchange (transmission) group terminate | | | • | • | |
| GE02 | 28 | Group Control Number | М | N0 | 1/9 | Must use | |
| | | Description: Assigned number originated and maintained by the sender | | | | | |

 The use of identical data interchange control numbers in the associated functional group header and trailer is designed to maximize functional group integrity. The control number is the same as that used in the corresponding header.

| | & | ш | N | _ | 40 | _ | |
|---|-----|---|----|---|----|---|---|
| L | Ox. | п | IV | О | τe | 5 | Ξ |

Comments:

Sample:

GE*1*850035393~

IEA Interchange Control Trailer

Pos: Max: 1
Not Defined - Mandatory
Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To define the end of an interchange of zero or more functional groups and interchange-related control segments

Element Summary:

| | <u>Ref</u> | <u>ld</u> | Element Name | <u>Req</u> | <u>Type</u> | Min/Max | <u>Usage</u> |
|--|------------|-----------|--|------------|-------------|------------------|--------------|
| | IEA01 | I16 | Number of Included Functional Groups | M | N0 | 1/5 | Must use |
| | | | Description: A count of the number of func | tional g | roups inc | cluded in an int | terchange |
| | IEA02 | l12 | Interchange Control Number | М | N0 | 9/9 | Must use |
| Description: A control number assigned by the interchange sender | | | | | | | |

D & H Notes:

Sample:

IEA*1*000089783~

Complete EDI Sample:

ISA*00* *00* *01*XXXXXXXX *12*7172557825 *160715*1418*U*00401*000089783*0*P*>~ GS*PO*XXXXXXXXX*7172557825*20160715*1418*850035393*X*004010~

ST*850*850342138~

BEG*00*SA*PSR8519**20160715~

REF*PO*PSR8519~

PER*BD*KIMBERLY HOFSTETTER*TE*8474656000*EM*kimbhof@XYZ.com~

FOB*PC*DE~

DTM*002*20160720~

TD5****ZZ~

N1*BT*XYZ Logistics*1*107627952~

N3*100 South Milwaukee Ave.~

N4*Vernon Hills*BY*10061*US~

PER*IC*KIMBERLY HOFSTETTER*TE*8474656000*EM*kimbhof@XYZ.com~

N9*ZZ******~

MSG*Notes About the Order up to 264 characters***~

N1*ST*XYZ Logistics*1*107627952~

N3*100 Sotuh Milwaukee Ave.~

N4*Vernon Hills*NY*10061*US*DE*01~

PER*IC*KIMBERLY HOFSTETTER*TE*8474656000*EM*kimbhof@XYZ.com~

PO1*1*1*EA*6.9**UP*1486426*VP*CBP50*BP*CBP50****~

PID*F****LENMAR BATT F/PLANTRONICS PHONE~

DTM*002*20160720~

CTT*1~

SE*22*850342138~

GE*1*850035393~

IEA*1*000089783~

Appendix B

D&H Distribution Facilities

The following is a list of the distribution faculties for D&H and the expected EDI message format for the addresses

of the facilities

Katie Court - Branch 1

909 Katie Court

Harrisburg, PA 17109

N1*ST*D&H - HARRISBURG*92*01

N3*UNION SQUARE IND PK*909 KATIE COURT

N4*Harrisburg*PA*17109*US

Fresno - Branch 4

3701 South Minnewawa Avenue

Fresno, CA 93725

N1*ST*D&H - FRESNO*92*04

N3*3701 S. Minnewawa Ave

N4*Fresno*CA*93725*US

Camp Hill (Returns) - Branch 2

500 Terminal Road

Camp Hill, PA 17011

*N1*ST*D&H - CAMP HILL*92*02*

N3*500 Terminal Road

N4*Camp Hill*PA*17011*US

Chicago – Branch 5

1455A Remington Boulevard

Bolingbrook, IL 90490

N1*ST*D&H - CHICAGO*92*05

N3*1455A Remington Boulevard

N4*Bolingbrook*IL*60490*US

Canada - Branch 3

7975 Heritage Road, Unit 20

Brampton, Ontario L6Y5X5

ST*D&H - CANADA*92*03 N3*7975 Heritage

Road*Unit 20 Building A N4*Brampton*ON*L6Y

5X5*CA

Atlanta/Newnan - Branch 6

185 Coweta Industrial Parkway

Newnan, GA 30265

N1*ST*D&H - ATLANTA*92*06

N3*185 Coweta Industrial Parkway

N4*Newnan*GA*30265*US